

SCHOOL OF ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING AND TELECOMMUNICATIONS

Resource Allocation for SWIPT-enabled Secure Communication Systems

by

Kaichen Feng

Thesis submitted as a requirement for the degree Master of Engineering

(Telecommunication Engineering)

November 27, 2022

Abstract

With the continuous upgrading of communication network technology, users' demand for lower latency and higher capacity network services is also rapidly expanding. In contrast, mobile network has also become a part of people's life, which affects people's life all the time. However, the energy consumption of mobile devices limits the working time and working range of mobile devices. To solve this problem, a new network called SWIPT has been developed that uses wireless signals to combine energy and information signals. The purpose of this paper is to review and introduce the existing SWIPT technology, propose my own system model and guarantee the quality of service of the users in the model. In this paper, we will discuss the maximum system channel capacity of a SWIPT system with the guarantee of security. The total power of the system and the eavesdropper's offensive and defensive equipment are also taken into account. Based on this model, a beamforming algorithm is proposed, in which SCA algorithm and SDP relaxation algorithm are used in convex optimization algorithm. Finally, the feasibility of the algorithm is proved by the simulation results.

*Key Word---*simultaneous wireless information and power transfer, channel capacity, beamforming design, SCA, SDP relaxation, KKT condition.

Abbreviations

1 G	First Generation Communication System
2G	Second Generation Communication System
3 G	Third Generation Communication System
4 G	Fourth Generation Communication System
5G	Fifth Generation Communication System
BS	Base Station
SWIPT	Simultaneous Wireless Information and Power Transferring
ІоТ	Internet of Things
WPT	Wireless Power Transfer
EM	Electromagnetic
MISO	Multiple-Input Single-Output system
RF	Radio Frequency
WPCN	Wireless Power Communication Network
WPBC	Wireless Powered Backscatter Communication
SINR	Signal to Interference plus Noise Ratio
MIMO	Multiple-Input Multiple-Output system
TS	Time Switching
PS	Power Splitting
IoT	Internet of Things

Contents

Acknowledgements	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Abbreviations	ii
Contents	iii
Chapter 1 Introduction	1
Chapter 2 Background	2
2.1 Development of the Telecommunication Netwo	rk2
2.2 Energy Problem	3
2.3 An Introduction of WPT	4
2.4 Receiver Structures of SWIPT	5
2.5 Challenges in SWIPT	7
2.6 Security in SWIPT	
Chapter 3 Thesis Model	
3.1 Notations	
3.2 System Descriptions	
3.3 Signal Model	11
3.4 Channel Capacity & Energy Harvesting	
Chapter 4 Problem Formulation	15
Chapter 5 Problem Optimization	17
5.1 SDP	17
5.2 SCA	20
5.3 KKT Condition	
Chapter 6 Simulation Results	24
Chapter 7 Conclusion and Future Work	
7.1 Conclusion	27
7.2 Future Work	27
References	

Chapter 1 Introduction

With the rapidly developing of mobile wireless communication system, the wireless mobile devices become normal equipment for people all over the world. Up to 2021, the number of mobile internet subscribers is 4.2 billion people globally, which is the 59% of the global population. In future, the proportion will raise steadily [1].

However, because almost all wireless mobile devices are designed to be portable, the battery is small and cannot store much energy. It holds back the future application of the wireless communication system. To solving this problem, introducing a feasible energy-saving approach is raised recently that "harvesting" energy from surrounding environment. There have been some resources from the environment could be used to save energy, such as solar, wind and ocean. Considering that almost all normal mobile services work in an environment which is full of radio signal, "harvesting" energy from the electromagnetic radio frequency (RF) is a viable solution [2]. What's more, Simultaneous Wireless Information and Power Transfer (SWIPT) network system is designed to spread the information signal and energy signal at the same time [3]. Therefore, SWIPT network and RF-based harvest energy but also the ability to self-collect energy from the base station (BS) [4] and the problems happened during the process of this system arrive in quick succession.

This thesis will focus on the security of the SWIPT system and provide a solution to keep a high bit rate at desired receivers during the noise jamming.

Chapter 2 Background

2.1 Development of the Telecommunication Network

The first phone was invented at 1980s. Since then, the use of wireless technology attracts the sight of the whole world. At first, it is an expensive technology just for basic voice services and the coverage is limited (1G).[5] From 2G, the network is improved that the network began to use digital signal to support users' service. What's more, users could send text by 2G [6]. During the 3G, the smartphone was invented, with the help of 3G network, people enjoy the telecommunication with more service [7]. After that, 4G supports music, online game and video application in mobile phone which means it has higher speed and wider bandwidth [8]. Today, the 5G is invented. This technology offers greater capacity, higher speed and better service [9]. Over all, there are huge changes in the speed and time to download. It means the wireless network could solve more problems and support more service [10].



Fig.1 Generations of Mobile Communication Technologies[11]

Therefore, the number of users of wireless mobile network raises rapidly at the same time. A report published by GSMA gives the raising trend of the global connection. It is obvious that in 2025 the 5G network will connect 2 billion people together, and to fill the need of users, we also propose the desideratum of 5G network. Of course, there are some challenges 5G need to solve. Such as data rate and network capacity expansion with energy, scalability and flexibility and so on [1].



Fig.2 Key milestones for the mobile industry to 2025

2.2 Energy Problem

As I mentioned before, With the upgrade of the wireless communication system, the use of mobile phones has become widespread. On the one hand, people use mobile phones to add convenience to their life, but mobile phones also become an obstacle to restrict people's convenient life. According to a report published at 2016, there are 90% people will feel anxious when their smartphone battery drops to 20 percent or below [12]. It shows that it can influence not only the using of wireless device but also the user experience. For example, a case of the report tells us if a person is ready to go to the gym for exercise, but he will give up and stay at home when he finds his battery

drops. Therefore, it is obviously important for the improving of wireless telecommunication network.

2.3 An Introduction of WPT

At 1900s, Nikola Tesla proposed the technique named wireless power transfer (WPT). He even performed experiments and filed the patens named Wardenclyffe Tower to be a pilot plant for the "World Wireless System". However, this ambitious project was interrupt because of concerns about the physical damage caused by strong electromagnetic (EM) waves at that time [11]. Recently, WPT attract engineers again as it is the key technology to improve the performance of IoT systems. For IoT system, there are numerous equipment and sensor need to charge which cause that introducing charging cables through the whole application scenario [13]. The WPT system is proposed to solve this problem by wireless charging [39].

For the system structure of SWIPT system, there are three types: RF-based WPT [14], Inductive coupling [15] and magnetic resonant coupling [16]. The latter two technologies are not universally applicable to wireless networks. Coupling requires the use of near-field electromagnetic waves to charge, which makes it much less mobile (charging within a few meters) [17]. At the same time, electromagnetic fields and energy-harvesting circuits must also be aligned, which reduces the diversity of wireless systems, because it means that charging can only be done using equipment from the same manufacturer, making it extremely difficult to bring in equipment from other manufacturers [18]. Comparing to them, RF-based WPT is a technology relay on the far-field properties of EM waves[43]. It can charge devices within hundreds of meters and through various EM wave sources, such as WIFI, base stations, etc. And RF signal can not only realize the transmission of energy, but also retain its information transmission characteristics, and the resource utilization of the system has been improved [19]. And the health problems caused by strong electromagnetic waves, which worried people 100 years ago, can be solved because the government can set the power of radio frequency so that it does not affect people's health [20].

2.4 Receiver Structures of SWIPT

As I mentioned before, the WPT is a technology transfer information and energy at the same time. There are three types of WPT: SWIPT, WPCNs and WPBC [22]. The WPCNs and WPBC are more stringent on the environment and will greatly increase the complexity of the receiving device, so they are not suitable for the popularization of all wireless devices [40][48]. Therefore, the SWIPT is attractive among them.



Fig.3 Basic Structure of SWIPT(a), WPCNs(b) and WPBC(c).

In SWIPT wireless network system, the information signal and energy are separately transferred at the same time[44]. The reason why the information signal is unable to use for save energy is that the process of energy harvesting could change the phase of the signal. It will cause the received information signal is hard to decoded. Correspondingly, the receiving antenna processes information and energy signals separately, and I will describe the two most typical receiving structures [22].

1.TS receiver structure keeps switching working mode between information signal mode and energy mode. It just has a function during a time slot, energy harvesting or information decoding. The advantage of this structure is the hardware implementation is relatively simple, but it also needs high-accuracy synchronization and information/energy scheduling.[41]

2.Power Splitting (PS) Receiver: PS receiver structure decodes the energy signal and information signal simultaneously. The whole signal will be divided into two streams by judging the power level by a PS unit. Then the energy signal and information signal will be decoded by energy harvester and information receiver severally. Furthermore, there is an optimization to control the balance between harvesting energy and decoding information. This kind of receiver antenna is suitable for wireless network as it could receive the information signal all the time although the structure is complex.[42]



Fig.4 Basic Structure of TS(a) receiver and PS(b) receiver

2.5 Challenges in SWIPT

While SWIPT offers real benefits for energy capture, there are still some significant challenges in integrating SWIPT technology into wireless communication systems. In [23], a basic view of the tradeoff between WET and WIT when considering channel fading and frequency selection is given. In [24-27], the authors give a rate-energy tradeoff region for multiple input multiple-output (MIMO) systems. Despite numerous previous studies, the efficiency of wireless power transmission remains low. It is worth noting that the path loss of the channel attenuates the wireless signal significantly, which results in the end user harvesting only a small fraction of the total power [38]. As a result, other technologies are being combined with SWIPT systems to improve power transmission efficiency. Multiple antennas are the most common technology used for this purpose [29]. In particular, by increasing the spatial freedom of multiple antennas, the system will obtain more wireless energy, which can be transmitted to the desired receiver more accurately and specifically, improving the efficiency of energy transmission [37]. In addition, existing network protocols, resource allocation algorithms and receiver structures are designed for traditional communication systems [28], and are optimized for pure data communication services. Due to the nature of beamforming, the relevant technologies are not sufficient to meet the standard requirements for practical SWIPT implementation [30]. Besides, the other hand of challenge is security problem that I will mention later.

2.6 Security in SWIPT

As I mentioned before, the information signal and energy signal will spread by the BSs simultaneously. It causes that the energy signal will have bad impact on Signal to Interference plus Noise Ratio (SINR) of the system [31]. The transmitter needs to devote higher energy to produce information signal to keep the suitable SINR for users. It increases the possibility of eavesdropping. There are two ways to solving security problem, application layer security and physical layer security[45]. The application layer security achieved by changing the encryption method in application layer (Layer 7 of the OSI model). The physical layer describes the situation of signal in the channel of the wireless system [46]. Obtain physical layer security is to increase the confidentiality of the information signal by exploiting the physical properties of the channel [32]. In contrast, the condition of A is harsh. It can be realized on the premise that the encryption key of the communication system will not be leaked in other ways, but it is impossible to guarantee this in real life. Therefore, the physical layer security is thought of the considerable method to protect the information signal from being decoding by eavesdroppers [33]. There also are many works have been devoted into this field. Both the systems of [34]-[36] add artificial noise as the energy signal to achieve the dual function of charging and protecting. The author of [34] study a source allocation algorithm to guarantee a secure wireless communication system equipped with power splitting receivers. In [35], a resource allocation algorithm is proposed to build a multiple-input single-output (MISO) secure telecommunication system which has lower transmit power with reliable secrecy capacity. Besides, it shows that by using physical layer security is able to provide a reliable secret wireless communication network with guarantied quality of service (QoS) in [36]. In the system models of [33]-[36], the author set the eavesdropper as a "thief" without aggressivity. However, the eavesdropper is not only an equipment for decoding the encrypted information signal sometimes. It is completely possible that the eavesdropper has partner BS to spread noise to attack the wireless communication.

Keeping the data rate of the wireless communication system under the attack from the other BS is a problem. In following part of this report, I will build my system model and provide a solution to keep the data rate of the users of the SWIPT wireless system.

Chapter 3 Thesis Model

3.1 Notations

During the later model, the matrices will be represented by boldface letter, the vector will be represented by lower case font.

Notation	Description		
A ^H	Hermitian transpose of matrix		
$Tr(\mathbf{A})$	Rank of matrix		
$A \geq 0$	A is a positive semidefinite matrix		
$\mathbb{C}^{N imes 1}$	The set of all N \times 1 matrices with complex entries		
$\mathbf{A} \in \mathbb{C}^{N_T \times 1}$	$\operatorname{Null}(\mathbf{A}) \triangleq \{ \mathbf{y} \in \mathbb{C}^{N \times 1} \colon A\mathbf{y} = 0, \mathbf{y} = 1 \}$		

Table.1 The Concept of Notations

3.2 System Descriptions



Fig.5 Basic Structure of System Model

I consider a SWIPT wireless telecommunication system for multiuser downlink communication. This network consists of two types receivers and two base stations.

The first kind of receiver is named desired receiver. The second kind of receiver is passive eavesdropper. The information base station (BS_1) is a transmitter with $N_T > 1$ antennas who can spread information signal, energy signal and artificial noise. It serves M passive eavesdroppers and K desired users. The attack base station (BS_2) equipped with $N_B > 1$ antennas who spreads artificial noise. For the desired receiver, it is a signal antenna equipment which equipped with the power splitting receiver structure. The other kind of receiver, passive eavesdropper, is also a receiver with same single structure. The desired receivers are the user of the wireless network, they can receive the information and energy signal to decode them. As for the passive eavesdroppers, they are roaming receivers from the other system who aim to research an energy additional resource at RF. However, they are ostensibly surreptitiously connected to the network to gain power, but in essence they may decode information signals to steal users' communications. Furthermore, they have a partner (attacking base station) to cause noise interference to the communication system. As the passive eavesdropper knows that there is a noise jamming, they will conduct the corresponding interference-free processing to obtain the correct information when receiving the information signal. However, the desired users can't judge if the system suffer the noise jamming. As a result, the artificial noise from the attack base station should be taken into the consider to give desired receiver a security wireless system.

3.3 Signal Model

In order to simplify the model and preserve its physical meaning, the channels are set as frequency flat fading channels and the system is a TDD system. What's more, the transmitters could obtain perfect CSI for all receivers [47].

In each time slot, all desired receivers will receive *K* different information signal. I set the vector $w_k \in \mathbb{C}^{N_T \times 1}$ to denote the beamforming vector of the BS_1 . At the same time, BS_1 itself has the function of transmitting artificial noise to disturb the decoding of potential eavesdroppers to ensure the security of the signal. Therefore, $\mathbf{x} \in \mathbb{C}^{N_T \times 1}$ which is the BS_1 's transmitted signal vector is represent by the combination of the information signals and artificial noise which is given by

$$\mathbf{x} = \sum_{k=1}^{K} \boldsymbol{w}_k \boldsymbol{s}_k + \boldsymbol{v}_1 \tag{1}$$

where $v_1 \in \mathbb{C}^{N_T \times 1}$ is artificial noise from BS₂ and $v_1 \sim \mathcal{CN}(\mathbf{0}, V_1)$. It means that the artificial noise is modelled as zero mean and covariance matrix V_I is the positive semidefinite Hermitian matrix. $s_k \in \mathbb{C}$ means the symbols of the signals for the desired receiver k.

As there are K desired receivers, the received signal is given by

$$\mathbf{y}_k = \mathbf{h}_k^H \mathbf{x} + n_R + \mathbf{g}_k^H \mathbf{v}_2 \tag{2}$$

where $h_k \in \mathbb{C}^{N_T \times 1}$ is the channel vector between the BS₁ and the k-th desired receiver. The $g_k \in \mathbb{C}^{N_T \times 1}$ is the channel vector between the BS₂ and the k-th desired receiver. The $n_R \sim C\mathcal{N}(0, \sigma_s^2)$ means the Gaussian noise of the receiver. $v_2 \in \mathbb{C}^{N_B \times 1}$ is artificial noise from BS₂ and $v_2 \sim C\mathcal{N}(0, V_2)$. It means that the artificial noise is modelled as zero mean and covariance matrix V_2 is the positive semidefinite Hermitian matrix. The receive signal at m-th passive eavesdropper is given as

$$\mathbf{y}_m = \mathbf{r}_m^H \mathbf{x} + n_R + \mathbf{q}_m^H \boldsymbol{v}_2 \tag{3}$$

where $r_m \in \mathbb{C}^{N_T \times 1}$ denotes the channel vector between the BS₁ and the m-th passive receiver. The $q_m \in \mathbb{C}^{N_T \times 1}$ is the channel vector between the BS₂ and the m-th passive receiver. What's more, there is a structure to split the received signal at the RF, the structure is show as the figure 6.



Fig.6 Structure of the Receiver

As I mentioned before, it will control the balance of the energy signal and information signal. As a result, the formulation which shows the information signal of k-th receiver structure is given by

$$\mathbf{y}_{k}^{ID} = \sqrt{\rho_{k}} \left(\mathbf{h}_{k}^{H} \mathbf{x} + n_{R} \right) + n_{k}^{s}$$

$$\tag{4}$$

The $n_R \sim \mathcal{CN}(0, \sigma_I^2)$ means the Gaussian noise of the receiver.

3.4 Channel Capacity & Energy Harvesting

In this SWIPT wireless system, the Qos of receiver is extremely. I will give the SINR equations and Energy Harvesting equations of different receivers.

For k-th desired receiver, the SINR could be given as

$$\Gamma_{k} = \frac{\rho_{k} |\boldsymbol{h}_{k}^{H} \boldsymbol{w}_{k}|^{2}}{\rho_{k} \left(\sum_{j \neq k}^{K} |\boldsymbol{h}_{k}^{H} \boldsymbol{w}_{j}|^{2} + \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{h}_{k} \boldsymbol{h}_{k}^{H} \boldsymbol{V}_{1}) + \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{g}_{k} \boldsymbol{g}_{k}^{H} \boldsymbol{V}_{2}) + \sigma_{s}^{2} \right) + \sigma_{I}^{2}}$$
(5)

The energy harvesting equation is

$$\mathbf{E}_{k} = \eta(1 - \rho_{k}) \left(\sum_{j=1}^{K} \left| \boldsymbol{h}_{k}^{H} \boldsymbol{w}_{j} \right|^{2} + \operatorname{Tr} \left(\boldsymbol{h}_{k} \boldsymbol{h}_{k}^{H} \boldsymbol{V}_{1} \right) + \operatorname{Tr} \left(\boldsymbol{g}_{k} \boldsymbol{g}_{k}^{H} \boldsymbol{V}_{2} \right) + \sigma_{s}^{2} \right)$$
(6)

Where $0 \le \eta \le 1$ means the efficiency of switching the RF energy into electrical energy at receivers. I assume this parameter as a constant.

For m-th passive eavesdropper, the SINR could be given as

$$\Gamma_{\rm m} = \frac{\rho_{\rm m} |\boldsymbol{r}_{\boldsymbol{m}}^{\boldsymbol{H}} \boldsymbol{w}_{\boldsymbol{m}}|^2}{\rho_{\rm m} \left(\sum_{j \neq k}^{K} \left| \boldsymbol{r}_{\boldsymbol{m}}^{\boldsymbol{H}} \boldsymbol{w}_{j} \right|^2 + \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{r}_{\boldsymbol{m}} \boldsymbol{r}_{\boldsymbol{m}}^{\boldsymbol{H}} \boldsymbol{V}_1) + \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{q}_{\boldsymbol{m}} \boldsymbol{q}_{\boldsymbol{m}}^{\boldsymbol{H}} \boldsymbol{V}_2) + \sigma_{\rm s}^2 \right) + \sigma_{\rm I}^2}$$
(7)

The energy harvesting equation is

$$\mathbf{E}_{\mathrm{m}} = \eta (1 - \rho_{\mathrm{m}}) \left(\sum_{j=1}^{M} \left| \boldsymbol{r}_{\boldsymbol{m}}^{H} \boldsymbol{w}_{j} \right|^{2} + \mathrm{Tr}(\boldsymbol{r}_{\boldsymbol{m}} \boldsymbol{r}_{\boldsymbol{m}}^{H} \boldsymbol{V}_{1}) + \mathrm{Tr}(\boldsymbol{q}_{\boldsymbol{m}} \boldsymbol{q}_{\boldsymbol{m}}^{H} \boldsymbol{V}_{2}) + \sigma_{\mathrm{s}}^{2} \right)$$
(8)

Chapter 4 Problem Formulation

As my aim of this project is to maximize the data rate of the desired receivers, the capacity of k-th desired receiver is given as

$$C_k = \log_2(1 + \Gamma_k) \tag{9}$$

As a result, my problem formulation is given as

$$\begin{aligned} \max_{w_k,\rho_k} \sum_{k=1}^{K} C_k \\ &= log_2 \left(1 + \frac{\rho_k |\boldsymbol{h}_k^H \boldsymbol{w}_k|^2}{\rho_k \left(\sum_{j \neq k}^{K} |\boldsymbol{h}_k^H \boldsymbol{w}_j|^2 + \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{h}_k \boldsymbol{h}_k^H \boldsymbol{V}_1) + \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{g}_k \boldsymbol{g}_k^H \boldsymbol{V}_2) + \sigma_s^2 \right) + \sigma_1^2 \right) \end{aligned} \tag{10} \\ &\text{s.t.C1:} \frac{\rho_k |\boldsymbol{h}_k^H \boldsymbol{w}_j|^2 + \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{h}_k \boldsymbol{h}_k^H \boldsymbol{V}_1) + \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{g}_k \boldsymbol{g}_k^H \boldsymbol{V}_2) + \sigma_s^2) + \sigma_1^2}{\rho_k \left(\sum_{j \neq k}^{K} |\boldsymbol{h}_k^H \boldsymbol{w}_j|^2 + \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{h}_k \boldsymbol{h}_k^H \boldsymbol{V}_1) + \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{g}_k \boldsymbol{g}_k^H \boldsymbol{V}_2) + \sigma_s^2 \right) \leq \Gamma_{\text{req},k}, \forall k, \end{aligned} \\ &\text{C2:} \sum_{k=1}^{K} ||\boldsymbol{w}_k||^2 \leq P_{\text{MAX}} \\ &\text{C3:} \\ &\eta \left(\sum_{j=1}^{K} |\boldsymbol{r}_m^H \boldsymbol{w}_j|^2 + \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{r}_m \boldsymbol{r}_m^H \boldsymbol{V}_1) + \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{q}_m \boldsymbol{q}_m^H \boldsymbol{V}_2) + \sigma_s^2 \right) \leq P_{\text{m,min}}, \forall m \end{aligned} \\ &\text{C4:} \boldsymbol{V}_n \geq \mathbf{0} \\ &\text{C5:} \ 0 \leq \rho_k \leq 1, \forall k \\ &\text{C6:} \ 0 < \eta < 1 \end{aligned}$$

Constraint C1 means the SINR of the received signal at the desired receiver must be higher than a threshold, $\Gamma_{req,k} > 0$. Constraint C2 means that the transmitted power of the base station should be under a proper limitation, $P_{MAX} > 0$. Constraint C3 indicates that the energy of the whole signal must be less than the minimum requirements of the passive eavesdroppers, $P_{m,min} > 0$. Constraint C4 ensures that the covariance matrix of artificial noise vector is one positive semidefinite Hermitian matrix. Constraint C5 indicates the physical constraints of the RF power splitter. I set that the power splitter structure is a passive device and won't consume any power in the process of splitting the received signal. Constraint C6 defines the conversion efficiency of the receiver structure is between 0 and 1.

Chapter 5 Problem Optimization

Convex optimization, or convex minimization, is a subfield of mathematical optimization, which deals with the minimization of convex functions defined in convex sets. In a sense, convex optimization is simpler than general mathematical optimization problems, for example, in convex optimization, the local optimal value must be the global optimal value.

The standard optimization problem can be expressed mathematically as follow:

$$\min_{x} f_0(x)$$
(11)
s.t. (x) $\leq 0, i = 1, \dots, m$
 $g_j(x) = 0, j = 1, \dots, n$
 f_0, \dots, f_i is convex, and g_j is affine

However, it is obvious that for most system model, the problems equalization is unconvex which means they cannot be written into this format. My aim in this chapter is to transfer my model problem become convex problem.

5.1 SDP

The SDP relaxation method is an effective method to eliminate the unnecessary nonconvexity in the formulation.[56] From the problem formulation, it is easy to find that there are non-convexity constraints C1, C2 and C3, the rest constraints are convex. Therefore, I use semi-definite programming (SDP) relaxation to convert nonconvexity element into convex function. Then, we can replace the obvious constraints: C1:

$$\frac{\rho_{k} |\boldsymbol{h}_{k}^{H} \boldsymbol{w}_{k}|^{2}}{\rho_{k} \left(\sum_{j \neq k}^{K} |\boldsymbol{h}_{k}^{H} \boldsymbol{w}_{j}|^{2} + \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{h}_{k} \boldsymbol{h}_{k}^{H} \boldsymbol{V}_{1}) + \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{g}_{k} \boldsymbol{g}_{k}^{H} \boldsymbol{V}_{2}) + \sigma_{s}^{2} \right) + \sigma_{I}^{2}} > \Gamma_{\mathrm{req},k}, \forall k,$$

$$\Rightarrow \frac{\operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{H}_{k} \boldsymbol{W}_{k})}{\sum_{j \neq k}^{K} \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{H}_{k} \boldsymbol{W}_{j}) + \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{H}_{k} \boldsymbol{V}_{1}) + \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{G}_{k} \boldsymbol{V}_{2}) + \sigma_{s}^{2} + \frac{\sigma_{I}^{2}}{\rho_{k}}} > \Gamma_{\mathrm{req},k}, \forall k, \qquad (12)$$

C2:

$$\sum_{k=1}^{K} \left| |\boldsymbol{w}_{k}| \right|^{2} \le P_{\text{MAX}} \implies \sum_{k=1}^{K} \text{Tr}(\boldsymbol{W}_{k}) \le P_{\text{MAX}}$$
(13)

C3:

$$\eta \left(\sum_{j=1}^{K} \left| \boldsymbol{r}_{m}^{H} \boldsymbol{w}_{j} \right|^{2} + \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{r}_{m} \boldsymbol{r}_{m}^{H} \boldsymbol{V}_{1}) + \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{q}_{m} \boldsymbol{q}_{m}^{H} \boldsymbol{V}_{2}) + \sigma_{s}^{2} \right) \leq P_{m,\min}, \forall m$$

$$\Rightarrow \eta \left(\sum_{j=1}^{K} \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{R}_{m} \boldsymbol{W}_{j}) + \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{R}_{m} \boldsymbol{V}_{1}) + \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{Q}_{m} \boldsymbol{V}_{2}) + \sigma_{s}^{2} \right) \leq P_{\min}, \forall m \qquad (14)$$

Additionally, the formulation (12) and (13) need a new constraint: $\operatorname{Rank}(W_k) \leq 1, \forall k$ Finally, the problem formulation is expressed as follow:

$$\begin{split} \max_{w_k,\rho_k} &\sum_{k=1}^{K} C_k = \log_2(1+\Gamma_k) \\ &= \log_2 \left(1 + \frac{\operatorname{Tr}(H_k W_k)}{\sum_{j \neq k}^{K} \operatorname{Tr}(H_k W_j) + \operatorname{Tr}(H_k V_1) + \operatorname{Tr}(G_k V_2) + \sigma_s^2 + \frac{\sigma_1^2}{\rho_k}} \right) \end{split}$$
(15)
s.t.C1:
$$\frac{\operatorname{Tr}(H_k W_k)}{\sum_{j \neq k}^{K} \operatorname{Tr}(H_k W_j) + \operatorname{Tr}(H_k V_1) + \operatorname{Tr}(G_k V_2) + \sigma_s^2 + \frac{\sigma_1^2}{\rho_k}} > \Gamma_{\operatorname{req},k}, \forall k, \\ C2: \sum_{k=1}^{K} \operatorname{Tr}(W_k) \leq P_{\mathrm{MAX}} \\ C3: \\ &\eta \left(\sum_{j=1}^{K} \operatorname{Tr}(R_m W_j) + \operatorname{Tr}(R_m V_1) + \operatorname{Tr}(Q_m V_2) + \sigma_s^2 \right) \leq P_{\min}, \forall m \\ C4: V_n \geq 0 \end{split}$$

C5:
$$0 \le \rho_k \le 1, \forall k$$

C6: $0 < \eta < 1$
C7: Rank $(W_k) \le 1, \forall k$

From (14), it is obvious that the formulation is a log function, I need to change it into an easier format which is convenient to calculate.

Set

$$\tau_k = \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{H}_k \boldsymbol{W}_k) \tag{16}$$

$$\beta_k = \sum_{j \neq k}^{K} \operatorname{Tr} \left(\boldsymbol{H}_k \boldsymbol{W}_j \right) + \operatorname{Tr} \left(\boldsymbol{H}_k \boldsymbol{V}_1 \right) + \operatorname{Tr} \left(\boldsymbol{G}_k \boldsymbol{V}_2 \right) + \sigma_s^2 + \frac{\sigma_l^2}{\rho_k}$$
(17)

Then

$$C_{k} = \log_{2}\left(1 + \frac{\tau_{k}}{\beta_{k}}\right) = \sum_{k=1}^{K} \log_{2}\left(\frac{\beta_{k} + \tau_{k}}{\beta_{k}}\right) = \sum_{k=1}^{K} \log_{2}(\beta_{k} + \tau_{k}) - \log_{2}(\beta_{k}) \quad (18)$$

The formulation change into:

$$\max_{\beta_{k},\tau_{k}} \sum_{k=1}^{K} C_{k} = \log_{2}(1+\Gamma_{k}) = \sum_{k=1}^{K} \log_{2}(\beta_{k}+\tau_{k}) - \log_{2}(\beta_{k})$$
(19)
s.t.C1: $\frac{\tau_{k}}{\beta_{k}} \ge \Gamma_{\mathrm{req}} \Rightarrow 0 \ge \beta_{k}\Gamma_{\mathrm{req}} - \tau_{k}$
C2: $\sum_{k=1}^{K} \mathrm{Tr}(\boldsymbol{W}_{k}) \le P_{\mathrm{MAX}} \Rightarrow 0 \ge \sum_{k=1}^{K} \mathrm{Tr}(\boldsymbol{W}_{k}) - P_{\mathrm{MAX}}$
C3: $\eta \left(\sum_{j=1}^{K} \mathrm{Tr}(\boldsymbol{R}_{m}\boldsymbol{W}_{j}) + \mathrm{Tr}(\boldsymbol{R}_{m}\boldsymbol{V}_{1}) + \mathrm{Tr}(\boldsymbol{Q}_{m}\boldsymbol{V}_{2}) + \sigma_{\mathrm{s}}^{2} \right) \le P_{\mathrm{min}}, \forall \mathrm{m}$
 \downarrow

$$0 \ge \eta \left(\sum_{j=1}^{K} \operatorname{Tr} (\boldsymbol{R}_{m} \boldsymbol{W}_{j}) + \operatorname{Tr} (\boldsymbol{R}_{m} \boldsymbol{V}_{1}) + \operatorname{Tr} (\boldsymbol{Q}_{m} \boldsymbol{V}_{2}) + \sigma_{s}^{2} \right) - P_{\min}, \forall m$$

$$C4: \boldsymbol{V}_{n} \ge \boldsymbol{0}, \boldsymbol{W}_{k} \ge \boldsymbol{0}$$

$$C5: 0 \le \rho_{k} \le 1, \forall k$$

$$C6: 0 < \eta < 1$$

$$C7: \tau_{k} \le \operatorname{Tr} (\boldsymbol{H}_{k} \boldsymbol{W}_{k}) \Rightarrow 0 \ge \tau_{k} - \operatorname{Tr} (\boldsymbol{H}_{k} \boldsymbol{W}_{k})$$

$$C8: \beta_{k} \ge \sum_{j \ne k}^{K} \operatorname{Tr} (\boldsymbol{H}_{k} \boldsymbol{W}_{j}) + \operatorname{Tr} (\boldsymbol{H}_{k} \boldsymbol{V}_{1}) + \operatorname{Tr} (\boldsymbol{G}_{k} \boldsymbol{V}_{2}) + \sigma_{s}^{2} + \frac{\sigma_{1}^{2}}{\rho_{k}}$$

19

$$0 \ge \sum_{j \ne k}^{K} \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{H}_{k}\boldsymbol{W}_{j}) + \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{H}_{k}\boldsymbol{V}_{1}) + \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{G}_{k}\boldsymbol{V}_{2}) + \sigma_{s}^{2} + \frac{\sigma_{1}^{2}}{\rho_{k}} - \beta_{k}$$

C9: Rank $(W_{k}) \le 1, \forall k$

However, after these two steps, the problem formulation which is still a nonconvex. Then I adopt the SCA method [49] on it.

5.2 SCA

1. At the beginning, I establish an upper bound:

$$\log_2(\beta_k) \le R^{(t)} \tag{20}$$

2. Calculate First-order Taylor Expansion [3]:

$$f'(x) = \frac{1}{\beta_k \ln(2)} \tag{21}$$

3. Calculate Second-order Taylor Expansion:

$$f''(x) = -\frac{1}{\beta_k^2 \ln(2)} < 0 \tag{22}$$

4. Form the theorem of Taylor's expansion I have known that:

If

So,

$$f''(x) \le 0, f(x) \le f(x_0) + f'(x_0) + f'(x_0)(x - x_0)$$
(23)

The equality holds when x is equal to x_0 .

$$\log_2(\beta_k) \le \log_2(\beta_k^{(t)}) + \frac{1}{\beta_k^{(t)} \ln(2)} (\beta_k - \beta_k^{(t)}) = R^{(t)}$$
(24)

The equality holds when β_k is equal to $\beta_k^{(t)}$. $R^{(t)}$ is the Taylor series of $\log_2(\beta_k)$ in the t-th iteration. $\beta_k^{(t)}$ is the value of the β_k after the t-th iteration in the SCA-based algorithm [51-54]. Finally, the formulation could be written as:

$$\max_{\beta_k, \tau_k} \sum_{k=1}^{K} C_k = \log_2(1 + \Gamma_k) = \sum_{k=1}^{K} \log_2(\beta_k + \tau_k) - R^{(t)}$$
(25)

s.t.C1:
$$0 \ge \beta_k \Gamma_{req} - \tau_k, \forall k$$

C2: $0 \ge \sum_{k=1}^{K} \operatorname{Tr}(W_k) - P_{MAX}, \forall k$
C3: $0 \ge \eta \left(\sum_{j=1}^{K} \operatorname{Tr}(R_m W_j) + \operatorname{Tr}(R_m V_1) + \operatorname{Tr}(Q_m V_2) + \sigma_s^2 \right) - P_{\min}, \forall m$
C4: $V_n \ge 0, W_k \ge 0$
C5: $0 \le \rho_k \le 1, \forall k$
C6: $0 < \eta < 1$
C7: $\operatorname{Rank}(W_k) \le 1, \forall k$
C8: $0 \ge \tau_k - \operatorname{Tr}(H_k W_k), \forall k$
C9: $0 \ge \sum_{j \ne k}^{K} \operatorname{Tr}(H_k W_j) + \operatorname{Tr}(H_k V_1) + \operatorname{Tr}(G_k V_2) + \sigma_s^2 + \frac{\sigma_1^2}{\rho_k} - \beta_k, \forall k$
C10: $\log_2(\beta_k + \tau_k) - R^{(t)} \ge C_{min} \Rightarrow 0 \ge C_{min} + R^{(t)} - \log_2(\beta_k + \tau_k), \forall k$
ere C7 is imposed to guarantee that $W = w_k w_k^H$ holds after optimization. Now, if I

Where C7 is imposed to guarantee that $W = w_k w_k^H$ holds after optimization. Now, if I can remove C7 by proofing KKT condition, this problem will change into a convex problem completely[55]. After that, I can begin to write MATLB program to simulation.

5.3 KKT Condition

Firstly, the Lagrangian function can by derived as follos

Lagrangian Function:

$$L(\boldsymbol{W}, \lambda_{1}, \lambda_{2}, \lambda_{3}, \lambda_{4}, \lambda_{5}, \lambda_{6}) = \sum_{k=1}^{K} log_{2}(\beta_{k} + \tau_{k}) - R^{(t)}$$
$$+\lambda_{1}[C_{min} + R^{(t)} - \log_{2}(\beta_{k} + \tau_{k})]$$
$$+\lambda_{2}\left[\sum_{k=1}^{K} \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{W}_{k}) - P_{MAX}\right]$$
$$+\lambda_{3}\left[\eta\left(\sum_{j=1}^{K} \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{R}_{m}\boldsymbol{W}_{j}) + \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{R}_{m}\boldsymbol{V}_{1}) + \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{Q}_{m}\boldsymbol{V}_{2}) + \sigma_{s}^{2}\right) - P_{\min}\right]$$
$$+\lambda_{4}[\tau_{k} - \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{H}_{k}\boldsymbol{W}_{k})]$$
$$+\lambda_{5}\left[\sum_{j\neq k}^{K} \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{H}_{k}\boldsymbol{W}_{j}) + \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{H}_{k}\boldsymbol{V}_{1}) + \operatorname{Tr}(\boldsymbol{G}_{k}\boldsymbol{V}_{2}) + \sigma_{s}^{2} + \sigma_{1}^{2} - \frac{\beta_{k}}{\rho_{k}}\right]$$
$$+\lambda_{6}[\beta_{k}\Gamma_{\mathrm{req}} - \tau_{k}] - Tr(\boldsymbol{W}) \qquad (26)$$

Where $Y \ge 0$; $\lambda_1, \lambda_2, \lambda_3, \lambda_4, \lambda_5, \lambda_6 > 0$ are dual variables corresponding to the constraint conditionsC10, C2, C3, C8, C9, C1.

Formulation after Lagrange:

$$\max_{\mathbf{Y},\lambda_1,\lambda_2,\lambda_3,\lambda_4,\lambda_5,\lambda_6} \inf_{\mathbf{W}} L$$
(27)

$$\frac{\partial L}{\partial \boldsymbol{W}} = \lambda_2 \boldsymbol{I} + \lambda_3 \eta \overline{r}_m \overline{r}_m^H - \lambda_4 \overline{h}_k \overline{h}_k^H + \lambda_5 \overline{h}_k \overline{h}_k^H - \boldsymbol{Y}$$
(28)

$$\boldsymbol{Y} = \lambda_2 \boldsymbol{I} + \lambda_3 \eta \boldsymbol{\overline{r}}_m \boldsymbol{\overline{r}}_m^H - \lambda_4 \boldsymbol{\overline{h}}_k \boldsymbol{\overline{h}}_k^H + \lambda_5 \boldsymbol{\overline{h}}_k \boldsymbol{\overline{h}}_k^H$$
(29)

$$Y = A - H \tag{30}$$

$$\boldsymbol{A} = \lambda_2 \boldsymbol{I}, \boldsymbol{H} = -\lambda_3 \eta \boldsymbol{\overline{r}}_m \boldsymbol{\overline{r}}_m^H + \lambda_4 \boldsymbol{\overline{h}}_k \boldsymbol{\overline{h}}_k^H - \lambda_5 \boldsymbol{\overline{h}}_k \boldsymbol{\overline{h}}_k^H$$
(31)

Assuming A is a positive semi-definite matrix. Let $V = v^H v$ and multiplying the equation [57][58]:

$$Tr(YV) = Tr(AV) - Tr(HV) = -Tr(HV)$$
(32)

Since Tr(HV) is large than zero, Tr(YV) is greater than or equal to zero. Then matrix *A* should be a positive definite matrix with full-rank(A > 0), Rank(A) = N_t .

Since $Rank(\mathbf{A}) \leq Rank(\mathbf{A} + \mathbf{B}) + Rank(-\mathbf{B})[8]$

Then

 $Rank(\mathbf{Y}) = Rank(-\mathbf{Y}) = Rank(-\mathbf{A} + \mathbf{H}) \ge Rank(-\mathbf{A}) - Rank(\mathbf{H}) \ge N_t - 1(33)$

Accordingly, the columns of W are members of the null space of Y, then I can conclude $Rank(W) \leq 1$.

Chapter 6 Simulation Results

Simulation Parameters					
Noise Power	-110dBm				
Carrier Frequency	2.1GHz				
P _{min}	0 dBm				
Cell Radius	150 meters				
Number of Eavesdropper	1				
Distance from BS ₁	30 meters				

Table.2	The	Simu	lation	Parameters
---------	-----	------	--------	------------

In this chapter, I analyze the simulation results which is system performance. The number of users is changed as a variable. The number of Eavesdropper is 1. The detailed simulation parameters can be found in Table 2. I assume that all desired users require the same minimum SINR, i.e., $\Gamma_{req,k} = \Gamma_{req}, \forall k \in \{1, ..., K\}$ for all results.

In Figure 7, I study the average achievable rate versus maximum transmit power of base station, for the different numbers of transmit antennas. It can be observed that the average achievable rate increases with the rising of maximum transmit power of base station. Indeed, to keep the security, the transmit power is limited as the signal may be used to collect energy for supporting the eavesdropper. On the other hand, a significant performance gain can be achieved as the number of the antennas increases from 4 to 8. The reason is that the increasing of number of transmit antennas could improve the degrees of freedom for resource allocation, which enables more reliable information signal for desired users. When the number raise from 8 to 12, the gain is lesser.



Fig.7 Average Achievable Rate vs Maximum Transmit Power per BS



Fig.8 Average Achievable Rate vs Number of Users

Figure 8 illustrates the average achievable rate versus number of users above the different numbers of transmit antennas. It is obvious that the rate is steadily rising when the number of users increase. It is because that when the number of users

increases, the users of system could receiver more information signal and encode it. Besides, the growth rate decreases as the number of users increases. Additionally, the added antennas also improve the average achievable rate gradually. The gains are almost the same when the antenna is increased from 8 to 12 and from 12 to 16, which is about 0.3bits/s/Hz.

Chapter 7 Conclusion and Future Work

7.1 Conclusion

This paper designs a MISO communication system based on SWIPT technology. Due to the presence of potential eavesdroppers and the presence of base stations used for attack signals, the security and reliability of communication systems are challenged. In this paper, a beam integration algorithm is designed to achieve the optimal solution of the communication system, in which convex optimization methods are used, such as SCA algorithm, SDP algorithm and KKT conditional proof. The final simulation results and analysis show that the beam integration algorithm designed and optimized in this paper can improve the corresponding performance of the system and maximize the channel capacity on the premise of ensuring security.

7.2 Future Work

In the design of the model, I set that there was only one eavesdropper and the distance between the eavesdropper and the base station was always at a fixed value. In fact, this was an idealized model, and I did not take into account the influence of external environment on the communication system. In future work, I will consider eavesdroppers in multiple locations to further improve the practicability of my algorithm. Besides, various emerging technologies, e.g., intelligent reflecting surfaces []-[]

References

- Kenechi Okeleke, S.S. (no date) The mobile economy 2022, The Mobile Economy 2022. Available at: https://data.gsmaintelligence.com/research/research/research-2022/the-mobile-economy-2022 (Accessed: November 21, 2022).
- [2] Ding, Z. et al. (2015) "Application of smart antenna technologies in simultaneous wireless information and Power Transfer," *IEEE Communications Magazine*, 53(4), pp. 86–93. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/mcom.2015.7081080.
- [3] Chen, X., Ng, D.W. and Chen, H.-H. (2016) "Secrecy wireless information and power transfer: Challenges and opportunities," *IEEE Wireless Communications*, 23(2), pp. 54–61. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/mwc.2016.7462485.
- [4] Krikidis, I. *et al.* (2014) "Simultaneous wireless information and power transfer in Modern Communication Systems," *IEEE Communications Magazine*, 52(11), pp. 104–110. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/mcom.2014.6957150.
- [5] "First generation (1G) cellular systems" (no date) Wireless Networks, pp. 95–109. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1002/047085801x.ch3.
- [6] Frauendorf, J.L. and Almeida de Souza, É. (2022) "The different architectures used in 1G, 2G, 3G, 4G, and 5G networks," *The Architectural and Technological Revolution of 5G*, pp. 83–107. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-031-10650-7 7.
- [7] Ye, N. (2022) "Evolution of multiple access-1G to 3G," *Fundamentals About Multiple Access Technology towards 6G* [Preprint]. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-19-5234-0_2.
- [8] Ahmed Solyman, A.A. and Yahya, K. (2022) "Evolution of wireless communication networks: From 1g to 6G and future perspective," *International Journal of Electrical and Computer*

Engineering (IJECE), 12(4), p. 3943. Available at: https://doi.org/10.11591/ijece.v12i4.pp3943-3950.

- [9] Yang, G. (2019) "Design and analysis of mobile phone antenna system with integration of LTE 4G, sub-6G and millimeter wave 5G Technologies," 2019 International Conference on Microwave and Millimeter Wave Technology (ICMMT) [Preprint]. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/icmmt45702.2019.8992073.
- [10] Massa, R. and Scarfi, M.R. (2022) "5G/6G Technologies and biological interactions: State of the art," 2022 61st FITCE International Congress Future Telecommunications: Infrastructure and Sustainability (FITCE) [Preprint]. Available at: https://doi.org/10.23919/fitce56290.2022.9934699.
- [11] Jill C, G and Micheal E, D., 2019. Fifth-Generation (5G) Telecommunications Technologies: Issues for Congress. *Congressional Research Service*, [online] Available at: https://crsrrports.congress.gov[Accessed: November 21, 2022]
- [12] "Low Battery Anxiety Grips 9 Out of Ten people," 2016. [Online]. Available: http://www.prnewswire.com/news-releases/lowbattery-anxiety-grips-9-out-of-ten-people-300271604.html
- [13] Liu, Y., Han, F. and Zhao, S. (2022) "Flexible and reliable multiuser SWIPT IOT network enhanced by UAV-mounted intelligent reflecting surface," *IEEE Transactions on Reliability*, 71(2), pp. 1092–1103. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/tr.2022.3161336.
- [14] Lu, W. et al. (2020) "OFDM based bidirectional multi-relay SWIPT strategy for 6G IOT Networks," China Communications, 17(12), pp. 80–91. Available at: https://doi.org/10.23919/jcc.2020.12.006.
- [15] Han, S. *et al.* (2018) "Secure capacity analysis for magnetic inductive coupling-based SWIPT system," *IEEE Access*, 6, pp. 49182–49191. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/access.2018.2868225.

- [16] Heyuan Qi et al. (2016) "A study of electromagnetic emission from two-coil WPT system using resonant magnetic field coupling," 2016 Asia-Pacific International Symposium on Electromagnetic Compatibility (APEMC) [Preprint]. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/apemc.2016.7522775.
- [17] Matias, R., Cunha, B. and Martins, R. (2013) "Modeling inductive coupling for wireless power transfer to integrated circuits," 2013 IEEE Wireless Power Transfer (WPT) [Preprint]. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/wpt.2013.6556917.
- [18] Fernandes, R.D., Matos, J.N. and Carvalho, N.B. (2015) "Constructive combination of resonant magnetic coupling and resonant electrical coupling," 2015 IEEE Wireless Power Transfer Conference (WPTC) [Preprint]. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/wpt.2015.7140183.
- [19] Pierantoni, L., Mencarelli, D. and Coccetti, F. (2013) "Graphene-based wireless communications systems: Analysis of the EM-quantum transport of coupled nano-patch antennas," 2013 IEEE Wireless Power Transfer (WPT) [Preprint]. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/wpt.2013.6556883.
- [20] Ng, D.W. and Schober, R. (2015) "Secure and green SWIPT in distributed antenna networks with limited backhaul capacity," *IEEE Transactions on Wireless Communications*, 14(9), pp. 5082– 5097. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/twc.2015.2432753.
- [21] Methods of study of WPT Systems (no date). IEEE.
- [22] Li, Q., Zhang, Q. and Qin, J. (2016) "Secure relay beamforming for SWIPT in amplify-andforward two-way relay networks," *IEEE Transactions on Vehicular Technology*, 65(11), pp. 9006–9019. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/tvt.2016.2519339.
- [23] Bipul,R., 2022.[online] Premium Membership. Available at_<https://electrical-engineeringportal.com/tesla-wireless-power-transmission-wpt> [Accessed November 21, 2022]

- [24] Kwan, N.D.W. (2019) Wireless Information and Power Transfer: Theory and Practice. Hoboken:J. Wiley & Sons.
- [25] Boshkovska, E. *et al.* (2015) "Practical non-linear energy harvesting model and resource allocation for SWIPT Systems," *IEEE Communications Letters*, 19(12), pp. 2082–2085. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/lcomm.2015.2478460.
- [26] Na Zhao et al. (2015) "Energy Efficiency Optimization based joint relay selection and resource allocation for SWIPT Relay Networks," 2015 10th International Conference on Communications and Networking in China (ChinaCom) [Preprint]. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/chinacom.2015.7497991.
- [27] Ng, D.W., Lo, E.S. and Schober, R. (2013) "Energy-efficient resource allocation in OFDMA systems with hybrid energy harvesting base station," *IEEE Transactions on Wireless Communications*, 12(7), pp. 3412–3427. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/twc.2013.052813.121589.
- [28] Ng, D.W. and Schober, R. (2011) "Dynamic Resource Allocation in OFDMA systems with full-duplex and hybrid relaying," 2011 IEEE International Conference on Communications (ICC)
 [Preprint]. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/icc.2011.5962906.
- [29] Wu, Y. et al. (2015) "Secure massive MIMO transmission in the presence of an active eavesdropper," 2015 IEEE International Conference on Communications (ICC) [Preprint]. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/icc.2015.7248525.
- [30] Zhai, X. et al. (2021) "Hybrid beamforming for massive MIMO over-the-air computation," IEEE Transactions on Communications, 69(4), pp. 2737–2751. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/tcomm.2021.3051397.
- [31] Ng, D.W., Lo, E.S. and Schober, R. (2014) "Robust beamforming for secure communication in systems with wireless information and Power Transfer," *IEEE Transactions on Wireless*

Communications, 13(8), pp. 4599–4615. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/twc.2014.2314654.

- [32] Zhu, J. et al. (2017) "Analysis and design of secure massive MIMO systems in the presence of hardware impairments," *IEEE Transactions on Wireless Communications*, 16(3), pp. 2001–2016. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/twc.2017.2659724.
- [33] Huang, K. and Zhou, X. (2015) "Cutting the last wires for mobile communications by Microwave Power Transfer," *IEEE Communications Magazine*, 53(6), pp. 86–93. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/mcom.2015.7120022.
- [34] Shiyang Leng, Ng, D.W. and Schober, R. (2014) "Power efficient and secure multiuser communication systems with wireless information and Power Transfer," 2014 IEEE International Conference on Communications Workshops (ICC) [Preprint]. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/iccw.2014.6881298.
- [35] Ng, D.W. and Schober, R. (2013) "Resource allocation for secure communication in systems with wireless information and Power Transfer," 2013 IEEE Globecom Workshops (GC Wkshps)
 [Preprint]. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/glocomw.2013.6825165.
- [36] Ng, D.W. and Schober, R. (2014) "Max-min fair wireless energy transfer for secure Multiuser Communication Systems," 2014 IEEE Information Theory Workshop (ITW 2014) [Preprint]. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/itw.2014.6970847.
- [37] Wu, Q. et al. (2019) "Generalized wireless-powered communications: When to activate wireless power transfer?," *IEEE Transactions on Vehicular Technology*, 68(8), pp. 8243–8248.
 Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/tvt.2019.2924051.
- [38] Ng, D.W. and Schober, R. (2012) "Energy-efficient power allocation for M2M communications with energy harvesting transmitter," 2012 IEEE Globecom Workshops [Preprint]. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/glocomw.2012.6477832.

- [39] Lu, X. et al. (2022) "Covertness and timeliness of data collection in UAV-aided wireless-powered IOT," IEEE Internet of Things Journal, 9(14), pp. 12573–12587. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/jiot.2021.3137846.
- [40] Miao, J. et al. (2020) "Throughput maximization for multi-UAV enabled Millimeter Wave WPCN: Joint Time and Power Allocation," China Communications, 17(10), pp. 142–156. Available at: https://doi.org/10.23919/jcc.2020.10.010.
- [41] Wei, Z. et al. (2017) "Performance analysis of a hybrid downlink-uplink cooperative noma scheme," 2017 IEEE 85th Vehicular Technology Conference (VTC Spring) [Preprint]. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/vtcspring.2017.8108407.
- [42] Leng, S. et al. (2016) "Multi-objective resource allocation in full-duplex SWIPT Systems," 2016 IEEE International Conference on Communications (ICC) [Preprint]. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/icc.2016.7510760.
- [43] Li, R. et al. (2020) "Resource allocation for secure multi-uav communication systems with Multi-Eavesdropper," *IEEE Transactions on Communications*, 68(7), pp. 4490–4506. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/tcomm.2020.2983040.
- [44] Ng, D.W., Lo, E.S. and Schober, R. (2016) "Multiobjective Resource Allocation for secure communication in Cognitive Radio Networks with Wireless Information and Power Transfer," *IEEE Transactions on Vehicular Technology*, 65(5), pp. 3166–3184. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/tvt.2015.2436334.
- [45] Liang, X. et al. (2020) "Outage probability of Cooperative Noma Networks under imperfect CSI with user selection," *IEEE Access*, 8, pp. 117921–117931. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/access.2020.2995875.
- [46] Letafati, M. *et al.* (2020) "Physical layer secrecy and transmission resiliency of device-to-device communications," *GLOBECOM 2020 2020 IEEE Global Communications Conference* [Preprint]. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/globecom42002.2020.9322227.

- [47] Wu, Y. et al. (2016) "Secure massive MIMO transmission with an active eavesdropper," IEEE Transactions on Information Theory, 62(7), pp. 3880–3900. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/tit.2016.2569118.
- [48] Zeid, M.A.-elghany, Abdelhalim, M.B. and Salama, G.I. (2015) "Accuracy improvement of WPBC dataset-based breast cancer diagnosis," 2015 25th International Conference on Computer Theory and Applications (ICCTA) [Preprint]. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/iccta37466.2015.9513449.
- [49]. F. Fang, Y. Xu, Q. -V. Pham and Z. Ding, "Energy-Efficient Design of IRS-NOMA Networks," in IEEE Transactions on Vehicular Technology, vol. 69, no. 11, pp. 14088-14092, Nov. 2020.
- [50]. Y. Cai, Z. Wei, S. Hu, D. W. K. Ng and J. Yuan, "Resource Allocation for Power-Efficient IRS-Assisted UAV Communications," 2020 IEEE International Conference on Communications Workshops (ICC Workshops), 2020, pp. 1-7.
- [51]. Z. Chen, W. Chen, X. Ma, Z. Li, Y. Chi and C. Han, "Taylor Expansion Aided Gradient Descent Schemes for IRS-Enabled Terahertz MIMO Systems," 2020 IEEE Wireless Communications and Networking Conference Workshops (WCNCW), 2020, pp. 1-7.
- [52]. W. Jiang, Y. Zhang, J. Wu, W. Feng and Y. Jin, "Intelligent Reflecting Surface Assisted Secure Wireless Communications With Multiple- Transmit and Multiple-Receive Antennas," in IEEE Access, vol. 8, pp. 86659-86673, 2020
- [53]. A. Ekbal and J. M. Cioffi, "Distributed transmit beamforming in cellular networks a convex optimization perspective," IEEE International Conference on Communications, 2005. ICC 2005. 2005, 2005, pp. 2690- 2694 Vol. 4.
- [54]. J. Zhang, "Optimality conditions for multiobjective programming problems with G-KKTpseudoinvexity," 2013 Ninth International Conference on Natural Computation (ICNC), 2013, pp. 618-622.
- [55]. V. K. N. Lau, W. K. Ng and D. S. Wing Hui, "Asymptotic tradeoff between cross-layer goodput gain and outage diversity in OFDMA systems with slow fading and delayed CSIT," in IEEE Transactions on Wireless Communications, vol. 7, no. 7, pp. 2732-2739, July 2008
- [56]. J. Choi, G. Kwon and H. Park, "Multiple Intelligent Reflecting Surfaces for Capacity

Maximization in LOS MIMO Systems," in IEEE Wireless Communications Letters

- [57]. Ng, D.W. and Schober, R. (2015) "Secure and green SWIPT in distributed antenna networks with limited backhaul capacity," *IEEE Transactions on Wireless Communications*, 14(9), pp. 5082– 5097. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/twc.2015.2432753.
- [58] Ng, D.W. and Schober, R. (2015) "Secure and green SWIPT in distributed antenna networks with limited backhaul capacity," IEEE Transactions on Wireless Communications, 14(9), pp. 5082– 5097. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/twc.2015.2432753.
- [59] X. Yu, D. Xu, Y. Sun, D. W. K. Ng and R. Schober, "Robust and Secure Wireless Communications via Intelligent Reflecting Surfaces," in *IEEE Journal on Selected Areas in Communications*, vol. 38, no. 11, pp. 2637-2652, Nov. 2020.
- [60] D. Xu, X. Yu, Y. Sun, D. W. K. Ng and R. Schober, "Resource Allocation for IRS-Assisted Full-Duplex Cognitive Radio Systems," in *IEEE Transactions on Communications*, vol. 68, no. 12, pp. 7376-7394, Dec. 2020.
- [61] D. Xu, X. Yu, Y. Sun, D. W. K. Ng and R. Schober, "Resource Allocation for Secure IRS-Assisted Multiuser MISO Systems," 2019 IEEE Globecom Workshops (GC Wkshps), Waikoloa, HI, USA, 2019, pp. 1-6.
- [62] L. You, J. Xiong, D. W. K. Ng, C. Yuen, W. Wang and X. Gao, "Energy Efficiency and Spectral Efficiency Tradeoff in RIS-Aided Multiuser MIMO Uplink Transmission," in *IEEE Transactions on Signal Processing*, vol. 69, pp. 1407-1421, 2021.
- [63] Z. Wei et al., "Sum-Rate Maximization for IRS-Assisted UAV OFDMA Communication Systems," in IEEE Transactions on Wireless Communications, vol. 20, no. 4, pp. 2530-2550, April 2021.
- [64] S. Hu, Z. Wei, Y. Cai, C. Liu, D. W. K. Ng and J. Yuan, "Robust and Secure Sum-Rate Maximization for Multiuser MISO Downlink Systems With Self-Sustainable IRS," in *IEEE Transactions on Communications*, vol. 69, no. 10, pp. 7032-7049, Oct. 2021.

- [65] G. Yu, X. Chen, C. Zhong, D. W. Kwan Ng and Z. Zhang, "Design, Analysis, and Optimization of a Large Intelligent Reflecting Surface-Aided B5G Cellular Internet of Things," in *IEEE Internet* of Things Journal, vol. 7, no. 9, pp. 8902-8916, Sept. 2020.
- [66] C. Liu, X. Liu, D. W. K. Ng and J. Yuan, "Deep Residual Learning for Channel Estimation in Intelligent Reflecting Surface-Assisted Multi-User Communications," in *IEEE Transactions on Wireless Communications*, vol. 21, no. 2, pp. 898-912, Feb. 2022.
- [67] M. Hua, Q. Wu, D. W. K. Ng, J. Zhao and L. Yang, "Intelligent Reflecting Surface-Aided Joint Processing Coordinated Multipoint Transmission," in *IEEE Transactions on Communications*, vol. 69, no. 3, pp. 1650-1665, March 2021.
- [68] S. Zargari, A. Khalili, Q. Wu, M. Robat Mili and D. W. K. Ng, "Max-Min Fair Energy-Efficient Beamforming Design for Intelligent Reflecting Surface-Aided SWIPT Systems With Non-Linear Energy Harvesting Model," in *IEEE Transactions on Vehicular Technology*, vol. 70, no.
 6, pp. 5848-5864, June 2021.
- [69] H. Shen, W. Xu, S. Gong, C. Zhao and D. W. K. Ng, "Beamforming Optimization for IRS-Aided Communications With Transceiver Hardware Impairments," in *IEEE Transactions on Communications*, vol. 69, no. 2, pp. 1214-1227, Feb. 2021.
- [70] J. Liu, K. Xiong, Y. Lu, D. W. K. Ng, Z. Zhong and Z. Han, "Energy Efficiency in Secure IRS-Aided SWIPT," in *IEEE Wireless Communications Letters*, vol. 9, no. 11, pp. 1884-1888, Nov. 2020.
- [71] X. Yu, D. Xu, D. W. K. Ng and R. Schober, "IRS-Assisted Green Communication Systems: Provable Convergence and Robust Optimization," in *IEEE Transactions on Communications*, vol. 69, no. 9, pp. 6313-6329, Sept. 2021.
- [72] Y. Cai, Z. Wei, S. Hu, D. W. K. Ng and J. Yuan, "Resource Allocation for Power-Efficient IRS-Assisted UAV Communications," 2020 IEEE International Conference on Communications Workshops (ICC Workshops), Dublin, Ireland, 2020, pp. 1-7.

[73] Y. Gao, J. Xu, W. Xu, D. W. K. Ng and M. -S. Alouini, "Distributed IRS With Statistical Passive Beamforming for MISO Communications," in *IEEE Wireless Communications Letters*, vol. 10, no. 2, pp. 221-225, Feb. 2021.

[74] X. Zhou, S. Yan, Q. Wu, F. Shu and D. W. K. Ng, "Intelligent Reflecting Surface (IRS)-Aided Covert Wireless Communications With Delay Constraint," in *IEEE Transactions on Wireless Communications*, vol. 21, no. 1, pp. 532-547, Jan. 2022.

[75] A. Khalili, S. Zargari, Q. Wu, D. W. K. Ng and R. Zhang, "Multi-Objective Resource
Allocation for IRS-Aided SWIPT," in *IEEE Wireless Communications Letters*, vol. 10, no. 6, pp. 1324-1328, June 2021.

[76] L. You *et al.*, "Reconfigurable Intelligent Surfaces-Assisted Multiuser MIMO Uplink
Transmission With Partial CSI," in *IEEE Transactions on Wireless Communications*, vol. 20, no.
9, pp. 5613-5627, Sept. 2021.

[77] W. Zhang, J. Xu, W. Xu, D. W. K. Ng and H. Sun, "Cascaded Channel Estimation for IRS-Assisted mmWave Multi-Antenna With Quantized Beamforming," in *IEEE Communications Letters*, vol. 25, no. 2, pp. 593-597, Feb. 2021.

[78] C. Wang, Z. Li, J. Shi and D. W. K. Ng, "Intelligent Reflecting Surface-Assisted Multi-Antenna Covert Communications: Joint Active and Passive Beamforming Optimization," in *IEEE Transactions on Communications*, vol. 69, no. 6, pp. 3984-4000, June 2021.

[79] M. A. Saeidi, M. J. Emadi, H. Masoumi, M. R. Mili, D. W. K. Ng and I. Krikidis, "Weighted Sum-Rate Maximization for Multi-IRS-Assisted Full-Duplex Systems With Hardware Impairments," in *IEEE Transactions on Cognitive Communications and Networking*, vol. 7, no. 2, pp. 466-481, June 2021.

[80] X. Yu, D. Xu, D. W. K. Ng and R. Schober, "Power-Efficient Resource Allocation for Multiuser MISO Systems via Intelligent Reflecting Surfaces," *GLOBECOM 2020 - 2020 IEEE Global Communications Conference*, Taipei, Taiwan, 2020, pp. 1-6.

[81] K. Guo, C. Wang, Z. Li, D. W. K. Ng and K. -K. Wong, "Multiple UAV-Borne IRS-Aided Millimeter Wave Multicast Communications: A Joint Optimization Framework," in *IEEE Communications Letters*, vol. 25, no. 11, pp. 3674-3678, Nov. 2021.

[82] D. Xu, V. Jamali, X. Yu, D. W. K. Ng and R. Schober, "Optimal Resource Allocation Design for Large IRS-Assisted SWIPT Systems: A Scalable Optimization Framework," in *IEEE Transactions on Communications*, vol. 70, no. 2, pp. 1423-1441, Feb. 2022.

[83] D. Xu, X. Yu, V. Jamali, D. W. K. Ng and R. Schober, "Resource Allocation for Large IRS-Assisted SWIPT Systems with Non-linear Energy Harvesting Model," 2021 IEEE Wireless Communications and Networking Conference (WCNC), Nanjing, China, 2021, pp. 1-7.